AD

1

# **USAAVLABS TECHNICAL REPORT 67-29**

AN EVALUATION OF THE SMOKE-WIRE TECHNIQUE For measuring velocities in Air

By

Curren J. Sanders Joe F. Thompson, Jr.



March 1967

# U. S. ARMY AVIATION MATERIEL LABORATORIES FORT EUSTIS, VIRGINIA

CONTRACT DA 44-177-AMC-892(T) MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY STATE COLLEGE, MISSISSIPPI

Distribution of this document is unlimited

2010

10

100

1

C))

155

47 3 M

ą.

•

1



ARCHIVE COPY

## Task 1F125901A14203 Contract DA 44-177-AMC-892(T) USAAVLABS Technical Report 67-29 March 1967

### AN EVALUATION OF THE SMOKE-WIRE TECHNIQUE FOR MEASURING VELOCITIES IN AIR

Aerophysics Research Report No. 70

by

Curren J. Sanders and Joe F. Thompson, Jr.

Prepared by

The Aerophysics Department Mississippi State University State College, Mississippi

for

U. S. ARMY AVIATION MATERIEL LABORATORIES FORT EUSTIS, VIRGINIA

Distribution of this document is unlimited

#### ABSTRACT

In the smoke-wire technique, oil is evaporated from a very thin, high-resistance wire by the passage of a large electric current through the wire from a capacitor. The resulting line of smoke is carried downstream with the local velocity of the air, deforming so that a photograph of the smoke line after a measured time delay provides a velocity profile. Since the time delay is very short, this velocity profile is very close to the actual velocity profile at the location of the wire. The technique was evaluated in two- and three-dimensional air flows, both laminar and turbulent, by comparisons with theoretical profiles. Experimental velocity profiles compared quite favorably with theoretical solutions for several different types of flows, including boundary layers, jets, wakes, and vortices. Modifications of the technique and associated apparatus were made ip order to extend its scope of application.

# CONTENTS

	Page
ABSTRACT	iii
LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS	vi
LIST OF SYMBOLS	viii
1. INTRODUCTION	1
2. THE OIL-COATED WIRE TECHNIQUE	2
A. EXPERIMENTAL METHOD	2
B. DATA REDUCTION	2
C. OIL APPLICATION METHODS	3
3. EVALUATION IN LAMINAR TWO-DIMENSIONAL FLOWS	4
A. BOUNDARY LAYER ON A FLAT PLATE	4
B. MEASUREMENTS IN THE WAKE OF A FLAT PLATE	5
4. EVALUATION IN TURBULENT FLOWS	6
A. TURBULENT BOUNDARY LAYER ON A FLAT PLATE	6
B. VELOCITY MEASUREMENTS IN A TURBULENT JET	6
5. EVALUATION IN THREE-DIMENSIONAL FLOWS	8
A. THE LAMINAR BOUNDARY LAYER ON A ROTATING DISK	8
B. VELOCITY MEASUREMENTS IN A CONFINED VORTEX	8
6. CURRENT APPLICATIONS IN RESEARCH	10
7. CONCLUSIONS	11
REFERENCES	43
DISTRIBUTION	44

v

-

# ILLUSTRATIONS

Figure		Page
1	Smoke-Wire Probe	12
2	Permanent Strobe-Delay Circuit Control, Open- Circuit Wind Tunnel	13
3	Portable Unit - Sprayer, Strobe Light, Delay Circuit	14
4	Delay Circuit Diagram	15
5	Apparatus Schematic for Flat Plate Boundary Layer Experiment	16
6	Smoke Profiles of the Laminar Boundary Layer on a Flat Plate	17
7	Comparison of Experimental and Theoretical Velocity Profiles in the Laminar Boundary Layer on a Flat Plate	18
8	Probe Arrangement for Velocity Measurement in a Flat Plate Wake	19
9	Apparatus Schematic for Flat Plate Wake Experiment	20
10	Smoke Profiles of the Laminar Wake of a Flat Plate	<b>2</b> 1
11	Comparison of Experimental and Theoretical Velocity Profiles in the Laminar Wake of a Flat Plate	22
12	Smoke Profiles of the Turbulent Boundary Layer on a Flat Plate	23
13	Comparison of Experimental and Theoretical Mean Velocity Profiles in the Turbulent Boundary Layer on a Flat Plate	24
14	Apparatus Schematic for Turbulent Jet Experiment	25
15	Smoke Profiles in a Turbulent Jet	26
16	Comparison of Experimental and Theoretical Mean Velocity Profiles in a Turbulent Jet	28
17	Turbulent Axial Velocity Fluctuations in a Turbulent	20

<u>Figure</u>		Pag
18	Probe and Camera Arrangement for Velocity Measure- ment in the Boundary Layer on a Rotating Disk	30
19	Apparatus Schematic for Rotating Disk Boundary Layer Experiment	31
20	Smoke Profiles of the Laminar Boundary Laye on a Rotating Disk, Radial Direction	32
21	Smoke Profiles of the Laminar Boundary Layer on a Rotating Disk, Tangential Direction	33
22	Experimental Radial Velocity Profiles in the Laminar Boundary Layer on a Rotating Disk	34
23	Experimental Tangential Velocity Profiles in the Laminar Boundary Layer on a Rotating Disk	35
24	Camera Arrangement for Velocity Measurement of the Tangential Component of a Confined Vortex	36
25	Smoke-Wire Arrangement for Velocity Measurement of the Tangential Component of a Confined Vortex	37
26	Apparatus Schematic for Confined Vortex Experiment	38
27	Smoke Profiles of the Tangential Component of a Confined Vortex	39
28	Experimental Tangential Velocity Profiles of a Confined Vortex	40
29	Smoke Profiles of the Laminar Boundary Layer on an Oscillating Flat Plate	41
30	Probe and Camera Arrangement for Velocity Measurement in the Boundary Layer on a Sailplane Wing in Flight	42

## Page

vii

#### 2. THE OIL-COATED WIRE TECHNIQUE

In the "smoke-wire" method, oil is evaporated from a very thin, high-resistance wire by the passage of a large electric current through the wire from a capacitor discharge. This forms a thin line of smoke at the wire. The line of smoke is carried downstream with the local velocity of the air at each point along the line and is thus deformed into the shape of the velocity profile. At the discharge of the capacitor a time-delay circuit is actuated which, after a predetermined time delay, simultaneously fires a strobe light and camera to illuminate and photograph the smoke. The displacement of the smoke can be measured from the film, and by using the known time delay, velocity profiles can be obtained.

In 1964, Cornell (reference 2) evaluated several different liquids for coating the wire. He concluded that the most suitable substance was a commercial "model train smoke" manufactured by Life-Like Products, Inc., of Baltimore, Maryland. Therefore, this type of oil was used in this evaluation of the technique.

#### A. EXPERIMENTAL METHOD

The present experiments were made using a nichrome wire 0.0015 inch in diameter. In all experiments, except the one involving the confined vortex, the wire was approximately 2 inches long; in the vortex experiment, a 6-inch wire was used. The wire in all but the vortex experiment was mounted on a support of beryllium copper strips, 0.025 inch thick and 0.2 inch wide (Figure 1), which maintained a slight tension in the wire and served as electrical conductors. The support was given a streamline cross section in the flow direction in order to minimize disturbances.

In the course of this evaluation, two strobe-delay circuit units were used, one mounted permanently in an open-circuit wind tunnel (Figure 2) and the other, a portable unit (Figure 3). Both units employ an 80 watt-second strobe light. The time-delay circuit diagram is shown in Figure 4. Two 35-millimeter cameras were used, a Practina FX and an Exacta VX2A, both with 50-millimeter lens and set at f2. Tri-X Estar base film was used throughout.

#### B. DATA REDUCTION

Velocity measurements were made from the photographs of the smoke profiles in the following manner: The 35-millimeter negatives were enlarged in a microfilm viewer, and the smoke profiles were carefully traced onto small-grid graph paper. The displacement of the smoke line from the wire was then measured at a number of points along the line and scaled to actual size. Finally, division of these displacements by the time delay yielded the velocities at the corresponding points at the position of the wire.

#### C. OIL APPLICATION METHODS

Oil had previously been applied to the wire with a small art brush. This produced good results, but it proved unfavorably time-consuming, as well as inconvenient, and in some circumstances, impossible.

A remote-controlled application was attempted using a hypodermic syringe as the applicator, but this proved unsuccessful. In this method, drops of oil were introduced onto the top of the wire from the syringe. However, in flowing air with appreciable velocity, the air current removed the oil drops before the wire became sufficiently coated.

An aerosol method of coating the wire was then tested. First, a commercial aerosol hair spray was used to determine if the wire could be sufficiently coated by aerosol application in moving air. It was discovered that directing the aerosol mist slightly upstream of the wire gave excellent results and produced very good smoke. However, after firing the wire several times, a residue collected on it forming heat insulation which made the velocity profiles too dim to interpret.

The most satisfactory results were obtained by applying the model train smoke with a paint spray gun (Figure 3). This method reduced the experimentation time by a factor of 6, as compared to the brush application. Spray application also has the important advantage of allowing application in regions impossible to reach with a brush.

The only disadvantage in spraying the wire was found to be pollution of the air when experimenting outside the tunnel in a confined room. In a tunnel with moving air, however, the excess mist is carried out the exhaust, and pollution poses no problem.

#### 3. EVALUATION IN LAMINAR TWO-DIMENSIONAL FLOWS

#### A. BOUNDARY LAYER ON A FLAT PLATE

The wire, attached to its supports, was mounted on the surface of a thin, flat plate (Figure 5), which was mounted in an open-circuit wind tunnel, parallel to the flow. The plate was of 12-inch chord and  $23\frac{1}{2}$ inch span and was 1/8 inch thick with a rounded leading edge. The windtunnel test section was octagonal,  $23\frac{1}{2}$  inches in width, 24 inches in height, and  $46\frac{1}{2}$  inches long. The wire support was aligned perpendicular to the tunnel axis. Particular care was taken to align the wire exactly perpendicular to the plate, since the wire is the reference line from which displacements of the smoke are measured.

The strobe light was mounted directly above the plate at a distance of about 1 foot with its axis perpendicular to the plate. Both the strobe assembly and the delay circuit are permanent fixtures of this wind tunnel. The camera was mounted outside the tunnel with its axis perpendicular to the wire and to the tunnel axis. The camera was located about 2 feet from the tunnel, directly aligned with and focussed on the center of the wire. Measurements were taken with the probe located 2 inches and 8 inches from the leading edge of the plate, at the mid-span position. Time delays of 2.0, 4.0, and 6.0 milliseconds were used at each location. The velocity of the air was 3 feet per second.

Figure 6 shows typical smoke profiles of the boundary layer on a flat plate. The wire was approximately 2 inches long, and the smoke displacement was about 0.5 inch at its maximum. Note that there is no distortion of the profile at the plate surface, indicating that any disturbance caused by the lower probe support is negligible. It can be seen that the boundary layer is thicker at 8 inches from the leading edge, as it should be.

Experimental velocity profiles taken from several such photographs are compared with the Blasius solution (reference 6) for laminar flow over a flat plate in Figure 7. There is better agreement and less scatter at 8 inches from the leading edge, since the influence of irregularities from the leading edge is less than at 2 inches. There is a lower limit, as well as an upper limit, to the time delay that can be used, since the shaded points, which correspond to the shortest delay, are not at all in agreement with the theoretical curve. The other three time delays yielded very good agreement with the theoretical curve, even at the surface of the plate.

The upper limit on the time delay that can be used is a result of the fact that the velocity is not constant in the direction of flow. Only in the rare case of constant velocity in this direction is the velocity which is measured the true velocity at the position of the wire. However, the error from this source decreases as the time delay decreases. The lower limit on the time delay is due to the finite time required for evaporation of the oil from the wire. Too short a time delay results in error, since the time between current discharge and formation of the smoke line may then be large compared with the time during which the smoke is transported downstream.

#### B. MEASUREMENTS IN THE WAKE OF A FLAT PLATE

Figures 8 and 9 show the smoke-wire arrangement used for taking velocity measurements in the wake of a flat plate. The same plate, tunnel arrangement, and strobe-delay circuit used for the flat-plate boundary layer were used for the wake investigation. The probe was mounted on a ring stand and carefully oriented so that the wire was perpendicular to the plane of the plate. The wire support was aligned perpendicular to the tunnel axis. The strobe light was directly above the wire with its axis perpendicular to the plane of the plate. The camera was aligned with the wire in the same manner as described in Part A. Measurements were taken with the probe located at 1.30 and 3.08 inches behind the trailing edge of the plate. Time delays of 5.0, 10.0, and 15.0 milliseconds were used. The tunnel airspeed was 3 feet per second.

Two smoke profiles of the flat plate wake are shown in Figure 10. The actual size of the wire in these photographs was approximately 2 inches, and the smoke displacement was about 0.5 inch at its maximum. The small oscillation perpendicular to the plane of the plate that is expected in the wake of a flat plate, because of Tollmien-Schlichting waves, can be seen by observing these photographs in sequence. There is particularly good symmetry here, and there is no abrupt change of slope at the center line.

Figure 11 is a comparison of experimental data with the laminar flat plate wake solution of Goldstein (reference 6). There is better agreement at 3.08 inches from the trailing edge than there is nearer the trailing edge because the plate had a finite thickness. Again, the short delay, represented by the dark points, produced erroneous data. The scatter, which is symmetric about the theoretical curve, is due to the above-mentioned slow fluctuation of the wake perpendicular to the plane of the plate.

#### 4. EVALUATION IN TURBULENT FLOWS

In turbulent flow the photograph records a profile of the instantaneous velocity, provided the delay time is much shorter than the period of turbulent fluctuation. Therefore, time-average or mean velocity can be obtained by averaging the measurements taken from a large number of photographs taken under the same conditions. Subtracting this mean velocity profile from each instantaneous profile yields the instantaneous turbulent fluctuation in the flow direction. The magnitude of this fluctuation can then be averaged to determine the root-mean-square of the turbulent fluctuation.

#### A. TURBULENT BOUNDARY LAYER ON A FLAT PLATE

Cornish (reference 3) measured the velocity in the turbulent boundary layer on a flat plate in his preliminary evaluation of the smoke-wire technique. The fluctuating nature of the velocity can be clearly seen in his photographs, some of which are shown in Figure 12. Figure 13 shows the excellent agreement of theoretical mean velocity profiles with Cornish's data, obtained by averaging over 36 profiles.

#### B. VELOCITY MEASUREMENTS IN A TURBULENT JET

Measurements were taken at two locations, 3.0 and 6.0 inches from the exit in a turbulent jet. The probe was mounted on a ring stand and oriented with the wire perpendicular to and intersecting the axis of the jet (Figure 14). The wire support was oriented perpendicular to the jet axis. The portable strobe-delay circuit unit was used, with the strobe light mounted directly above the wire, at a distance of about 3 feet, and perpendicular to the jet axis. The camera was located about 2 feet from the wire, oriented with its axis perpendicular to the wire and to the axis of the jet, and aligned with and focussed on the center of the wire.

The jet used had a 1.0-inch-diameter exit and was the same as that used by Faris (reference 4) in his investigations of the velocity profiles in the turbulent jet. This jet had been carefully designed to assure constant laminar flow at the exit. The flow in the jet was turbulent outside the laminar core. The speed of the jet at the exit was 40 feet per second. This experiment was conducted in a darkened room. A total of 36 photographs, typical ones of which are shown in Figure 15, were taken at each location. The wire was again about 2 inches long, and the maximum smoke displacement was about 0.15 inch.

Mean velocity profiles and root-mean-square velocity fluctuation profiles were obtained by averaging 36 photographs as discussed above. The laminar core of the jet is evident in the profiles obtained at 3.0 inches from the exit, and the fluctuating nature of the turbulent region is obvious at both locations. It was necessary to use a very short time delay (1.25 milliseconds), since the time delay must be much less than the period of the turbulent fluctuation. Otherwise, the profile will be distorted by turbulent eddies downstream of the wire.

The curve in Figure 16a is a representation of the experimental data taken 3.0 inches from the exit of the jet. The laminar core of the jet was still in existence at this location, and no adequate theory was available for comparison. The extent of the laminar core is well indicated by the flat region of the curve near the center line of the jet.

Figure 16b is a comparison of the experimental data taken at 6.0 inches from the jet exit with Faris' theoretical solution (reference 4). This location was beyond the laminar core, and the agreement with theory is very good.

Figure 17 shows the root-mean-square of velocity fluctuation at each location. The extent of the laminar core is clearly evident on both curves and is much smaller at 6.0 inches from the exit, as would be expected. The maximum value of the velocity fluctuation occurs between the laminar core and the jet boundary, since the flow was laminar at the jet boundary also.

#### 5. EVALUATION IN THREE-DIMENSIONAL FLOWS

#### A. THE LAMINAR BOUNDARY LAYER ON A ROTATING DISK

Two components of the velocity can be measured with the smoke wire by using two cameras aligned at 90 degrees to each other and both perpendicular to the wire. In order to evaluate this technique for three-dimensional flow, the wire was mounted perpendicular to a 1.0-foot-diameter rotating disk, with the lower support just touching the disk. Particular attention was taken to assure that the lower support just barely touched the disk, since too much pressure between the disk and the wire resulted in frictional heating and led to the breaking of the wire.

One camera was mounted facing in the radial direction and another facing in the tangential direction, each being carefully aligned with its axis perpendicular to the wire (this arrangement is shown in Figures 18 and 19). Thus, one camera recorded the projection of the velocity in the tangential direction, and the other camera recorded the projection in the radial direction. Both cameras were located about  $1\frac{1}{2}$  feet from the wire, aligned with and focussed on the center of the wire. The strobe light of the portable strobe-delay circuit unit was mounted about 3 feet directly above the wire, with its axis perpendicular to the disk. Measurements were taken at two radii, 3.0 and 5.0 inches. The time delay was set at 20.0 milliseconds at both locations. The disk was rotated at 250 r.p.m. This experiment was conducted in a darkened room.

Smoke profiles in both the radial and tangential directions are shown in Figures 20 and 21. Again, the profiles are smooth all the way down to the surface of the disk. The radial velocity maximum is clearly indicated, and the profile is quite smooth around this maximum.

No theory on the laminar boundary layer on a finite disk was available for comparison with experimental results. Figures 22 and 23 show plots of the experimental data for both the radial and tangential components of velocity. All radial smoke profiles coincided almost exactly, so that only one set of data is shown in Figure 22. However, there was some scatter in the tangential profiles, and data points were taken from several different photographs in obtaining Figure 23. Because of the difficulty in measuring the rapidly increasing tangential velocities near the surface, the scatter is pronounced in this region. At a small distance from the surface, the profiles begin to coincide, and the scatter becomes very small.

#### B. VELOCITY MEASUREMENTS IN A CONFINED VORTEX

For this phase of the experiment the smoke wire was stretched across a Plexiglas\* tube of approximately 6-inch diameter (Figures 24, 25,

<sup>\*</sup> Reg. T. M., Rohn & Haas Company

and 26), perpendicular to the tube axis. The wire was located  $12\frac{1}{2}$  inches from the entrance end of the tube. Each end of the wire was clamped to the side of the tube and connected to the portable delay circuit. The flow entered the tube tangentially at one end and exited through a 1.0inch hole in a plate over the cross section  $26\frac{1}{2}$  inches from the entrance. Again, the portable unit was used with the strobe light located about 4 feet from the wire, with its axis at about an angle of 45 degrees with the tube axis.

The velocity profiles were photographed through a glass plate over the entrance end of the tube by a camera with its axis aligned on the tube axis (Figure 24), about 16 inches from the wire. In addition to this camera, another camera was mounted about 3 feet directly above the wire with its axis perpendicular to the wire to photograph the axial profile. However, photographs of the axial component were unobtainable because of light reflection from the Plexiglas. Measurements of the tangential velocity were made by tracing the profiles onto polar graph paper and measuring the displacement as an arc length. This experiment was also conducted in a darkened room.

Since the maximum velocity in a vortex occurs very near the center, it was necessary to use very short time delays in order to keep the smoke near the center from going around several times. The shortest delay possible with the delay circuit used was 1.0 millisecond, and it was not possible to investigate vortex circulations high enough for the flow to be turbulent.

Figure 27 shows smoke profiles of the tangential velocity taken at two vortex circulations with maximum velocities of 14 and 45 feet per second. The experimental tangential velocity is compared with the laminar vortex solution of Oseen (reference 6). The lower speed was obtained with the blower near the lower limit of operation, resulting in considerable irregularity in blower speed. This caused the profiles taken at different times to differ somewhat in magnitude. Therefore, only one set of data is shown in Figure 28a. The agreement is good, but there are several points far off the curve due to the irregularities introduced by the blower.

The agreement with theory is very good, however, at the higher speed, as shown in Figure 28b. The scatter near the maximum velocity is due to the difficulty of measuring large displacements at small radii. The angular displacement here was in excess of 360 degrees, so that a small error in the radius resulted in a large error in displacement and, therefore, in velocity.

### 6. CURRENT APPLICATIONS IN RESEARCH

Yamada (reference 8) has recently prepared a thesis on the unsteady boundary layer on an oscillating flat plate in which the smoke wire was used exclusively in obtaining data. Figure 29 shows typical smoke profiles of the boundary layer on an oscillating plate. In order to obtain smoke profiles under such conditions, it is imperative that the delay be much less than a period of oscillation.

Currently, the Aerophysics Department of Mississippi State University is investigating the boundary layer on the wing of a sailplane in flight. The smoke wire and portable apparatus are being used for obtaining data by flying at night (Figure 30).

#### 7. CONCLUSIONS

The smoke-wire technique has been shown, by comparison with theoretical solutions, to be a useful tool for aerodynamic research, capable of measuring velocities in both two- and three-dimensional flows, laminar and turbulent. Profiles of two components of the velocity can be obtained by using only one smoke wire with two cameras. Reliable measurements without distortion can be obtained all the way down to a solid surface in the flow. Proper orientation of the wire and alignment of the camera are critical.

Measurements can be made in time-dependent flow by using a delay time much less than the period of fluctuation. Mean velocity profiles in turbulent flow can be obtained by averaging a number of instantaneous profiles. Turbulent fluctuation velocities themselves, as well as root-mean-square values, can also be measured.

Data scatter due to the technique itself is well within acceptable limits, though averaging may be necessitated by fluctuations in the flow under study, since any such fluctuation will be recorded. The technique of spraying the wire and the portable delay circuit and strobe light makes possible the use of the smoke-wire technique under practically any circumstance.





Figure 2. Permanent Strobe-Delay Circuit Control, Open-Circuit Wind Tunnel.



Figure 3. Portable Unit - Sprayer, Strobe Light, Delay Circuit.



Figure 4. Delay Circuit Diagram.





16

.



a. 2 Inches from Leading Edge.



b. 8 Inches from Leading Edge.

Figure 6. Smoke Profiles of the Laminar Boundary Layer on a Flat Plate.





a.

Comparison of Experimental and Theoretical Velocity Profiles in the Laminar Boundary Layer on a Flat Plate. Figure 7.



Figure 8. Probe Arrangement for Velocity Measurement in a Flat Plate Wake.



Figure 9. Apparatus Schematic for Flat Plate Wake Experiment.



a. 1.3 Inches from Trailing Edge.



b. 3.08 Inches from Trailing Edge.

Figure 10. Smoke Profiles of the Laminar Wake of a Flat Plate.







Figure 12. Smoke Profiles of the Turbulent Boundary Layer on a Flat Plate.



\*\*\*\* · /







Figure 14. Apparatus Schematic for Turbulent Jet Experiment.



## a. 3 Inches from Exit.

Figure 15. Smoke Profiles in a Turbulent Jet.

26

.



## b. 6 Inches from Exit.

Figure 15(cont.). Smoke Profiles in a Turbulent Jet.

27

Ĭ





Figure 16. Comparison of Experimental and Theoretical Mean Velocity Profiles in a Turbulent Jet.

28

•









Ŧ

Figure 19. Apparatus Schematic for Rotating Disk Boundary Layer Experiment.

- Charles



a. 3 Inches from Center.



b. 5 Inches from Center.

Figure 20. Smoke Profiles of the Laminar Boundary Layer on a Rotating Disk, Radial Direction.



a. 3 Inches from Center.



b. 5 Inches from Center

Figure 21. Smoke Profiles of the Laminar Boundary Layer on a Rotating Disk, Tangential Direction.







Ŧ

Figure 23. Experimental Tangential Velocity Profiles in the Laminar Boundary Layer on a Rotating Disk.



Camera Arrangement for Velocity Measurement of the Tangential Component of a Confined Vortex.



Figure 25. Smoke-Wire Arrangement for Velocity Measurement of the Tangential Component of a Confined Vortex.



Figure 26. Apparatus Schematic for Confined Vortex Experiment.



a. Lower Speed.



b. Higher Speed.

Figure 27. Smoke Profiles of the Tangential Component of a Confined Vortex.



AN P

λ.

b. Higher Speed.

Figure 28. Experimental Tangential Velocity Profiles of a Confined Vortex.



Figure 29. Smoke Profiles of the Laminar Boundary Layer on an Oscillating Flat Plate.





#### REFERENCES

- Bomelburg, H. J., <u>A Method for the Measurement of the Flow of Air</u> by <u>Means of Series of Electronic Sparks</u>, Technical Note OSR-TN-56-38, University of Maryland Institute for Fluid Dynamics and Applied Mathematics, College Park, Maryland, 1955.
- Cornell, David, <u>Smoke Generation for Flow Visualization</u>, Research Report No. 54, Aerophysics Department, Mississippi State University, State College, Mississippi, 1964.
- 3. Cornish, Joseph J., III, <u>A Device for the Direct Measurement of</u> <u>Unsteady Air Flows and Some Characteristics of Boundary Layer</u> <u>Transition</u>, Mississippi State University Research Note, TRECOM Technical Report 65-12, U. S. Army Transportation Research Command (now, U. S. Army Eviation Materiel Laboratories), Fort Eustis, Virginia, March 1965.
- Faris, George Naim, <u>Some Entrainment Properties of a Turbulent Axi-</u> <u>Symmetric Jet</u>, Research Report No. 39, Aerophysics Department, Mississippi State University, State College, Mississippi, 1963.
- Geller, E. W., "An Electrochemical Method of Visualizing the Boundary Layer", <u>Journal Aeronautical Sciences</u>, Volume 22, No. 12, 1955, pp. 869-870.
- Schlichting, H., <u>Boundary Layer Theory</u>, 2nd English Edition, McGraw-Hill Book Company, Inc., 1960.
- Townend, H. C. H., "Hot Wire and Spark Shadowgraphs of the Airflow through an Airscrew", <u>Philosophical Magazine</u>, Volume 7, No. 14, 1932, pp. 700-712.
- 8. Yamada, Hideo, <u>An Experimental Work on the Unsteady Boundary Layer</u> of an Oscillating Flat Plate, Master's Thesis, Mississippi State University, State College, Mississippi, 1966.

#### DISTRIBUTION

5 €

1

1 2

1 2

18 1

1

1

1 2

2

1

1

1

1

1

1 2

2

1 2

3

2

1

10

2

1

1

1

1

12

1

2

1

1

2

1

3

1

1

1

1

20

US Army Materiel Command US Army Aviation Materiel Command United States Continental Army Command Unites States Army, Pacific Chief of R&D, DA Director of Defense Research and Engineering US Army R&D Group (Europe) US Army Aviation Materiel Laboratories US Army Limited War Laboratory Army Aeronautical Research Laboratory, Ames Research Center US Army Research Office-Durham US Aimy Engineer Waterways Experiment Station US Army Test and Evaluation Command US Army Electronics Command US Army Combat Developments Command, Fort Belvoir US Army Combat Developments Command Aviation Agency Army Ordnance Weapons Command Ordnance Special Weapons-Ammunitions Command US Army Command and General Staff College US Army Aviation School Assistant Chief of Staff for Force Development US Army Aviation Test Activity, Edwards AFB Air Force Flight Test Center, Edwards AFB US Army Field Office, AFSC, Andrews AFB Air Force Flight Dynamics Laboratory, Wright-Patterson AFB Systems Engineering Group, Wright-Patterson AFB Air Force Materials Laboratory, Wright-Fatterson AFB Naval Ship Engineering Center Naval Air Systems Command, DN Office of Naval Research US Naval Air Test Center, Patuxent River Commandant of the Marine Corps Marine Corps Liaison Officer, US Army Transportation School Lewis Research Center, NASA Manned Spacecraft Center, NASA NASA Scientific and Technical Information Facility NASA-LRC, Langley NAFEC Library (FAA) US Army Aviation Human Research Unit US Army Board for Aviation Accident Research Bureau of Safety, Civil Aeronautics Board US Naval Aviation Safety Center, Norfolk Federal Aviation Agency, Washington, DC Federal Aviation Agency, Jamaica, NY US Army Medical R&D Command 1st Calvary Division (Airmobile), Fort Benning US Government Printing Office Defense Documentation Center

- 7	•			•					~	٠		- 1	
	- 1	n	$\sim$		~	<b>~</b>	0		•	•	$\mathbf{a}$	~	
	- 4		ч.,	н.	~	-					-	4 I.	
	~		~	-	~	-	-	•	-	•	~	~	

F

<b>DOCUMENT</b> (Security classification of title, body of abstract and in ORIGINATING ACTIVITY (Corporate author) The Aerophysics Department Mississippi State University State College, Mississippi REPORT TITLE AN EVALUATION OF THE SMOKE- VELOCITIES IN AIR DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)	CONTROL DATA - R&D dexing empotation must be entered 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0	d whin t REPOR Unc GROUP	he overall report is classified) It security classification classified				
ORIGINATING ACTIVITY (Corporate author) The Aerophysics Department Mississippi State University State College, Mississippi REPORT TITLE AN EVALUATION OF THE SMOKE- VELOCITIES IN AIR DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)	WIRE TECHNIQUE		T SECURITY CLASSIFICATION				
Aerophysics Department Mississippi State University <u>State College, Mississippi</u> REPORT TITLE AN EVALUATION OF THE SMOKE- VELOCITIES IN AIR DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)	WIRE TECHNIQUE	GROUP	classified				
State College, Mississippi REPORT TITLE AN EVALUATION OF THE SMOKE- VELOCITIES IN AIR DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)	WIRE TECHNIQUE	GROUP					
AN EVALUATION OF THE SMOKE- VELOCITIES IN AIR	WIRE TECHNIQUE						
AN EVALUATION OF THE SMOKE- VELOCITIES IN AIR	WIRE TECHNIQUE						
VELOCITIES IN AIR DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)		FOR	MEASURING				
DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)							
AUTHOR(S) (Lest name, first name, initial)							
Sanders Curren I							
Thompson, Joe F., Jr.							
	7. TOTAL NO OF PAGE	<u> </u>	7b. NO. OF REFS				
March 1967	52	-	8				
a. CONTRACT OR GRANT NO.	94. ORIGINATOR'S REPOR	T NUME	BER(S)				
DA 44-177-AMC-892(T)							
b. PROJECT NO.	USAAVLABS Te	echnie	cal Report 67-29				
Task 1F125901A14203	95. OTHER REPORT NO(S	) (Any o	other numbers that may be assigned				
4	Aerophysics Res	Aerophysics Research Report No. 70					
0. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES			•				
	· · • • • •						
Distribution of this document is unit	imited.						
1. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	12 SPONSORING MILITAR	ACTIV	/17 Y				
	II S Army Aviat	tion N	Materiel Laboratorie				
	Fort Eustis, Vir	ginia					
3 ABSTRACT							
In the smoke-wire technique, oil is	evaporated from a	very	thin, high-resistanc				
wire by the passage of a large elect	ric current through	the v	wire from a capacito				
The resulting line of smoke is carri	ed downstream with	n the	local velocity of the				
delay provides a velocity profile	or the smoke line a	iner	a measured time erv short this veloc				
ity profile is very close to the actua	il velocity profile at	the	location of the wire				
The technique was evaluated in two-	and three-dimensi	onal	air flows, both lami-				
nar and turbulent, by comparisons v	with theoretical pro	files.	Experimental				
velocity profiles compared quite fav	orably with theoret	ical s	solutions for several				
different types of flows, including b	oundary layers, jet	s, wa	akes, and vortices.				
Modifications of the technique and a	ssociated apparatus	wer	e made in order to				
extend its scope of application.	~						
	N						
D FORM 1 472							
D JERM. 1473		Ur	nclassified				

## Unclassified

1. p

8

Security Classification								
		LINK A			КВ	LINKC		
		ROLE	wт	ROLE	ΨT	ROLE	₩T	
Instrumentation								
Flow Visualization								
Boundary Layer Measuring Techniq	ues							
INST	FUCTION	S						
1. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY: Enter the name and address of the contractor, subcontractor, grantee, Department of De- fense activity or other organization (corporate author) issuing the report. 2a. REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION: Enter the over-	10. AVA itations imposed such as:	ALABIL IT on further by securit	Y/LIMIT dissemin v classif	ATION N ation of t ication, u	OTICES: he report using sta	Enter an other the ndard stat	ny lim- an those ements	
all security classification of the report. Indicate whether "Restricted Data" is included. Marking is to be in accord- ance with appropriate security regulations.	(2)	report from	announce	ement and	dissemi	nation of	this	
2b. GROUP: Automatic downgrading is specified in DoD Di- rective 5200.10 and Armed Forces Industrial Manual. Enter the group number. Also, when applicable, show that optional markings have been used for Group 3 and Group 4 as author- ized.	(3)	"U. S. Go this report users sha	overnment t directly 11 request	agencies from DD t through	may obt C. Other	ain copie qualified	s of DDC	
3. REPORT TITLE: Enter the complete report title in all capital letters. Titles in all cases should be unclassified. If a meaningful title cannot be selected without classifica- tion, show title classification in all capitals in parenthesis immediately following the title.	(4)	"U. S. mi report dir shall requ	litary age ectly from lest throu	encies ma n DDC - C ligh	y obtain Other qua	copies of lified use	this rs	
4. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES: If appropriate, enter the type of report, e.g., interim, progress, summary, annual, or final. Give the inclusive dates when a specific reporting period is covered.	(5)	"All dist ified DDC	ribution o Cusers st	of this rep nall reque	ort is co st throug	ntrolled. ;h	Qual- - • ''	
5. AUTHOR(S): Enter the name(s) of author(s) as shown on or in the report. Enter last name, first name, middle initial. If military, show rank and branch of service. The name of the principal author is an absolute minimum requirement.	If th Services cate this 11, SUI	e report hi s, Departm s fact and PPLEMEN	as been for ent of Co enter the TARY NO	urnished ( mmerce, f price, if DTES: U	othe Of orsalet known seforad	fice of Te o the publ ditional e:	chnical .ic, indi- xplana-	
6. REPORT DATE: Enter the date of the report as day, month, year; or month, year. If more than one date appears on the report, use date of publication.	tory not 12, SPC the depa	es. DNSORING artmental p	MILITA roject of	RY ACTI	VITY: E	nter the n sponsoring	ame of g (pay-	
7a. TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES: The total page count should follow normal pagination procedures, i.e., enter the number of pages containing information.	ing for) 13. ABS' summary	the resear TRACT: E of the do	ch and de nter an al cument in	bstract gi dicative	ving a bi of the rep	de address rief and fa port, even be technic	ctual though	
7b. NUMBER OF REFERENCES: Enter the total number of references cited in the report.	port. If shall be	additional attached.	space is	required	, a conti	nuation sh	eet	
8a. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER: If appropriate, enter the applicable number of the contract or grant under which the report was written.	It is ports be end with of the in	highly de unclassifi an indica	sirable th ied. Eac tion of th in the pa	at the ab h paragra le military ragraph, r	stract of ph of the security	classified abstract y classifid ed as (TS	tre- shall ation ), (S),	
so, a, a so. PROJECT NUMBER: Enter the appropriate military department identification, such as project number, subproject number, system numbers, task number, etc.	(C), or (U). There is no limitation on the length of the abstract. How-							
9a. ORIGINATOR'S REPORT NUMBER(S): Enter the offi- cial report number by which the document will be identified and controlled by the originating activity. This number must be unique to this report.	14. KEY WORDS: Kev words are technically meaningful terms or short phrases that characterize a report and may be used as index entries for cataloging the report. Key words must be selected so that no security classification is required. Iden- fiers, such as equipment model designation, trade name, mili- tary project code name, geographic location, may be used as key words but will be followed by an indication of technical context. The assignment of links, rules, and weights is optional.							
yo. OTHER REPORT NUMBER(S): If the report has been assigned any other report numbers (either by the originator or by the sponsor), also enter this number(s).								

Unclassified Security Classification 2480-67